
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – February 13, 2023   Page 1 of 2 

 
 
Date: February 13, 2023 
Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   
 Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
 
Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment use 
the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record may be 
submitted to aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm meeting day.  

             
 
1. Call to Order 

 
A. Roll Call 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Approval of Agenda  
 
A. Pg. 1: Agenda 

 
4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
 
5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  

 
A. Excused Absences:  
B. Pg. 3: Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of January 23, 2023 
C. Pg. 6: Approval of:  

 
Pg. 34: For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling 
$4,519,466.53 are included in Warrants noted above:  

• Accounts Payable EFT numbered 14007 to 14007 - $11,034.47 (Included in A/P Warrant 58380) 
• Accounts Payable EFT numbered 14008 to 14040 - $257,910.52 (Included in A/P Warrant 58386) 
• Accounts Payable EFT numbered 14041 to 14041 - $26,604.02 (Included in A/P Warrant 58404) 
• Accounts Payable EFT numbered 14042 to 14086 - $450,162.23 (Included in A/P Warrant 58410) 
• Accounts Payable EFT numbered 14087 to 14093 - $911,967.02 (Included in A/P Warrant 58439) 
• Accounts Payable EFT numbered 14094 to 14106 - $47,968.28 (Included in A/P Warrant 58448) 
• Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 58050 to 

58381 - $2,698,458.66 (Included in A/P Warrant 58441) 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58380 to 58380 totaling: $ 11,034.47 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58381 to 58403 totaling: $ 378,832.44 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58404 to 58405 totaling: $ 27,104.02 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58406 to 58437 totaling: $ 488,436.79 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58438 to 58446 totaling: $ 5,273,344.99 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58447 to 58455 totaling: $ 602,869.29 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107724 to 107728 totaling: $ 18,876.06 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58456 to 58482 totaling: $ 165,801.20 
GRAND TOTAL $ 6,966,299.26 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org


       CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA  

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – February 13, 2023 Page 2 of 2 

• Accounts Payable EFT numbered 14107 to 14144 - $115,361.33 (Included in A/P Warrant 58461)

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action)
A. Pg. 84: 2023-2025 Strategic Plan Adoption – Chief Morrow

7. New Business (First Reading)
A. Pg. 93: Board Policy 3.39 Property Management – Chief Morrow

B. Pg. 127: Competitive Bid Waiver, Sole Source Helmets – FD Robacker

8. Considerations and Requests
A. Pg. 133: Firefighter Hiring Notification – HRD Washo

B. Pg. 135: Class A Uniform Funding – Chief Morrow

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports

A. Pg. 136: Human Resources – HRD Washo

B. Pg. 138: Training – AC Benning

C. Pg. 139: Field Operations – AC Kent

D. Pg. 140: EMS – AC Bouchard

E. Pg. 141: DC Operations – DC Stueve

F. Pg. 142: Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Morrow

10. Correspondence
A. Pg. 143: Citizen Thank You Letters

B. Pg. 145: Employee Recognition

11. Commissioner Comments

12. Adjournment

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   January 23, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

January 23, 2023 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue to order at District Headquarters – 17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma at 5:00 p.m.  
A remote attendance option was available to the public. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Ex-Officio Door, Chief Morrow, 
Deputy Chief VanKeulen, Assistant Chiefs Berdan and McKenzie, L726 President James, 
Graham Fire & Rescue Commissioner Homan and Purchasing Analyst Packer, recorder.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chair Holm led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences: HRD Washo (?) 
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of January 9, 2023    
C. Approval of: 

Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $1,423,366.97. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
A. Board Policy 3.20 Vehicle Use (Take Home, Assigned, and Pool Vehicles)   

 
Chief Morrow reviewed Board Policy 3.20 Vehicle Use (Take Home, Assigned, and Pool 
Vehicles). No changes were made after the First Reading. Commissioner Stringfellow 
moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to approve Board Policy 3.20 Vehicle Use 
(Take Home, Assigned, and Pool Vehicles) as presented by Staff. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
A. 2023-2025 Draft Strategic Plan Presentation 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58322 to 58322 totaling: $ 717,136.00 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58323 to 58339 totaling: $ 129,760.71 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58340 to 58379 totaling: $ 577,577.14 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58059 to 58059 totaling: $ (1093.19) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58260 to 58260 totaling:  (13.69) 

GRAND TOTAL $ 1,423,366.97 

   

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   January 23, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Chief Morrow presented the Draft Strategic Plan Presentation before the Board.  
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  
No Considerations or Requests 
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 
A. Finance/FD Robacker: FD Robacker reviewed the Finance Division Report, 

including the December Checkbook and Financial Reports. IRS mileage rates 
increased to 65.5 cents. Thank you to Jessica Resop, Stephany Carter-Hoskinson, 
and Brian Caldier for implementing the extensive changes in the 2023 Labor 
Contracts.  
 

B. Logistics/AC Stueve: AC Stueve reviewed the Logistics Division Report. The Flash 
Cube building is moving along and IT has a tentative move-in date of February 
2023.  

 

C. Prevention & Education/AC Berdan: AC Berdan reviewed the Prevention & 
Education Division Report.  

 

D. Administration/DC VanKeulen: DC VanKeulen reviewed the Administration Section 
Report. Great job to all who were involved in the planning of John Garner’s 
memorial. Thank you for everyone’s hard work.  

 

E. Fire Chief’s Report/Chief Morrow: Chief Morrow reviewed the Fire Chief’s Report. 
Thank you for everyone’s efforts & hearts that were involved in honoring John 
Garner.  

 
L726 President James: Thank you to those who attended the gathering after John 
Garner’s service. Fundraisers have raised $57,000 for the family.  
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
Chair Holm is proud to see the correspondence from a citizen.  
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Chair Holm: Chair Holm was positively astounded by the attendance at John’s service.  
 

Vice Chair Stringfellow: Vice Chair Stringfellow was very impressed with the District’s 
efforts in honoring John Garner.   
 

Commissioner Willis: The Strategic Plan was intentionally casted with a wide net. Now that 
more things are in-line, it makes sense that it is very specific. 
 

Commissioner Coleman: None 
 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   January 23, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Mitchell: Thank you for the hard work that was put into John Garner’s 
memorial.  
 

Ex-Officio Door: Garner’s service was touching & very well done. Thank you to all who 
made that happen. Mother was taken to Good Sam last night by 72 & she felt that the 
experience was very positive. South Sound 911 to meet on Wednesday to hopefully 
answer questions for pending issues. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Executive Session postponed.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Coleman moved and Commissioner 
Mitchell seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 
 
 
 

            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 

      
JESSICA PACKER 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title:  2023-2025 Strategic Plan Adoption 

Attachments:  2023-2025 Strategic Plan 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
MOTION: 
 
“I move to approve the 2023-2025 Strategic Plan as presented by Staff.” 
 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
 
Staff has made the final updates to the 2023-2025 Strategic Plan. Staff is now ready to have the 
Board of Fire Commissioners adopt the plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

84



STRATEGIC PLAN

2023                                 2025

85



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE   |   STRATEGIC PLAN   |   2023-2025

OVERVIEW
The 2023-2025 Strategic Plan for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue is a departure from its previous 
Strategic Plans. Unlike earlier versions of the District’s Strategic Plan, where the District contracts with 
a vendor to guide the process, Staff assembled this plan almost entirely. 

The Staff has harvested input from several stakeholders, including the public, the District’s Fire 
Commissioners, District employees, IAFF Local 726, and the District’s Leadership Team. The Staff has 
combined this information with carry-over issues from the 2018 Strategic Plan and known issues or 
opportunities within the District. 

Finally, the Staff has considered Industry standards, along with regional, political, and financial 
factors influencing the District’s journey over the next 36 months. These additional influences have 
been incorporated into this Strategic Plan. 

The Strategic Plan answers six specific questions: 

 1. WHY DO WE EXIST?
 2. HOW DO WE BEHAVE?
 3. WHAT DO WE DO?
 4. HOW WILL WE SUCCEED?
 5. WHAT IS MOST IMPORTANT RIGHT NOW?
 6. WHO MUST DO WHAT?

New to the District is the idea that this Strategic Plan will have “strategic anchors.” These anchors are 
not meant to change year over year. Strategic anchors are indicative of the concepts that keep the 
organization focused and performing in the manner we expect for the longer term. 

This new plan must be dynamic and fluid, allowing the District to be agile and innovative. Many 
things in the District have been, or are being, disrupted for one reason or another. More plainly, 
change is underway within the District, in the District’s service area and its communities, the region, 
and the fire service as a whole. The District must be better positioned to lead, manage, and adapt 
through this change, hence a shorter-term plan that is more dynamic and fluid. 

The various elements of this Strategic Plan are used by the Board of Fire Commissioners, the 
Executive Team, and all Members to support our work. The Strategic Plan will be explicitly linked to 
the District’s policy positions, development and management of the District’s budget, and execution 
of the expected performance standards within the District’s standard of cover. 

While some naming conventions and structure changed in this plan, the District still leans heavily 
on its mission, vision, and values. At the core of these three elements is service- service to our 
communities and to the men and women who serve within Central Pierce Fire & Rescue.

86



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE   |   STRATEGIC PLAN   |   2023-2025

DEFINITIONS
STRATEGIC ANCHORS- an intentional topic, direction, or statement that the leadership team
believes must be in front of the District at all times. Strategic Anchors are meant to be the “filter” that 
all decisions for the District are made through.

EXPECTED RESULTS- when the expected results are present, the District knows it has achieved 
what was set out for as a Strategic Anchor.

THEMATIC GOALS- these theme goal statements are meant to be singular, qualitative, temporary,
and shared across the leadership team, and any assigned workgroups of the District. They are 
meant to be worked on one or two at a time, as to put the “weight of the organization” behind them. 
They are known as the current “rallying cry” within the District. The stated thematic goals within this 
plan will be expanded upon by the Leadership Team during the course of this plan, becoming more 
specific in nature and time bound.

DEFINING OBJECTIVES- these objectives are the tasks, details, and actions that need to be put in
motion in order to accomplish the thematic goal. They are the work the Leadership Team and 
the workgroups must do. Defining Objectives do not show up in the Strategic Plan, as they are 
developed in real time across the expected performance period.

STANDARD OBJECTIVES- these objectives are the items of “routine intelligence” that allow the
District to monitor it’s routine business. They are developed and owned by the Leadership Team. They 
contribute to an understanding of the progress towards the Strategic Anchor.

CORE VALUES- these values represent the core of the Districts’ expected culture. They are not 
meant to change over time, and Members of the District should lean on them as a strong sense
of how to behave each and every day while at work.

ASPIRATIONAL VALUES- these values are present in some places within the District’s culture, but
not solidified across the entire District. These values need additional development over the life
of the plan.

PERMISSION TO PLAY VALUES- these values are the minimum standards of behavior within our
culture that is expected at the District.

87



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE   |   STRATEGIC PLAN   |   2023-2025

1. WHY DO WE EXIST? - MISSION

To effectively respond, continuously improve, and compassionately serve.

2. HOW DO WE BEHAVE? - VALUES

COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE- CORE (HUNGRY)
• Develop and maintain technical proficiency
• Exemplify a strong work ethic
• Demonstrate dependability
• Promote a positive culture
• Show pride in self, organization, and profession

RESPECT- PERMISSION TO PLAY
• Be tactful- right time, right place, and right topic
• Use candor- timely and to the point
• Talk only about what you know to be true
• Discuss principles and position, not politics or personality

TRUST (WORTHINESS)- ASPIRATIONAL
• Offer trust to gain trust
• Demonstrate confidence in each other through timely, specific, and relevant feedback
• Establish and maintain clear, open communication

INTEGRITY- PERMISSION TO PLAY
• Do the right thing all the time
• Follow through and do what you said you would do
• Own your mistakes and accept feedback

COMPETENCE- CORE (SMART)
• Perfect your craft
• Focus on your job first
• Be a continuous learner
• Actively mentor others

PROFESSIONALISM- ASPIRATIONAL
• Bring credit to yourself, the organization, and the profession
• Adhere to appearance and conduct standards
• Hold each other accountable

COMPASSION AND SELFLESSNESS- CORE (HUMBLE)
• Demonstrate empathy
• Actively listen
• Place duty before self
• Give more than you take
• Commit to humanity and dignity

88



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE   |   STRATEGIC PLAN   |   2023-2025

3. WHAT DO WE DO?

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue provides solutions to the people of our communities by responding to 
their needs. We also take great care of each other and ourselves.

4. HOW WILL WE SUCCEED? - VISION

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue will experience success when we all do the following five things as an 
individual and as an organization:
• Drive the mission
• Model the values
• Manage your portion of the business
• Care for each other
• Care for ourselves

5. WHAT IS MOST IMPORTANT RIGHT NOW?

HEALTH EXECUTION POSSIBILITY
#1 #2 #3

89



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE   |   STRATEGIC PLAN   |   2023-2025

STRATEGIC ANCHOR #1- HEALTH
Cultivate a healthy organization by focusing on core service delivery, developing people,
performance at all levels, communicating clearly, and using resources as intended.

EXPECTED RESULTS
• Programs, processes, activities, and schedules of the District are representative of working in a 

manner to maximize service delivery.
• People are in balance- they are appropriately engaged and appropriately disengaged, with 

broad wellness in place.
• Those in leadership positions lead by example.
• There are tangible development programs at all levels that personnel benefit from, mentorship is 

occurring, and people feel well prepared to be successful in their current role.
• Individuals demonstrate an understanding that their performance directly influences 

organizational performance and are held accountable to their performance.
• Relevant and timely information is being shared, allowing individuals, and teams, to be informed 

on current topics throughout the District.
• Risk, benefit, reward, and responsibility are analyzed at all levels before allocating resources of 

any type.

THEMATIC GOALS
• TG1A- Prioritize emergency response.
• TG1B- Create a cohesive leadership team.
• TG1C- Invest in our people.
• TG1E- Create systems for balance.
• TG1F- Create clarity, and alignment around 

individual and organizational performance and 
accountability.

• TG1G- Communicate effectively.
• TG1H- Build a usable resource allocation model.

STANDARD OBJECTIVES
• SO1A- Monitor overall District activity load.
• SO1B- Monitor leadership team engagement.
• SO1C- Monitor organizational morale.
• SO1D- Monitor effectiveness of communication.
• SO1E- Monitor financial metrics.

90



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE   |   STRATEGIC PLAN   |   2023-2025

STRATEGIC ANCHOR #2 - EXECUTION
Follow through in a manner that brings and maintains stability in the organization.

EXPECTED RESULTS
• A single culture is present within the organization.
• The “Hobo” environment ceases to exist.
• Recruitment yields a high level of qualified candidates that align with who we are and who we 

want to continue to be.
• Staffing and deployment across the District is appropriate for the given environment- metrics 

support continuous improvement in core services.
• Capital assets, and tools to do the job, are current and ease any burdens to accomplishing the 

work.
• The Board, Management, and Labor are aligned around the current and future direction of the 

District.
• Data and information is available to make informed decisions.
• We are connected with our communities and key partners, and they offer us their support 

towards the District’s expected performance.

THEMATIC GOALS
• TG2A- Address remaining cultural difficulties 

within the organization.
• TG2B- Build recruitment processes that match the 

current environment.
• TG2C- Right size the District’s staffing and 

deployment.
• TG2D- Develop a Capital Plan.
• TG2E- Gain alignment between the Board, the 

Leadership Team, and the Local.
• TG2F- Build out data, information, and analytics 

capabilities.
• TG2G- Bolster community and partner 

connections.

STANDARD OBJECTIVES
• SO2A- Monitor staffing levels.
• SO2B- Monitor incident response performance.
• SO2C- Monitor business metrics.
• SO2D- Monitor community and partner 

connection.

91



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE   |   STRATEGIC PLAN   |   2023-2025

STRATEGIC ANCHOR #3- POSSIBILITY
In an effort to responsibly grow the organization, there is an emphasis on being intentional, both
inside and outside the organization, of driving out duplication, creating efficiencies, being 
innovative, utilizing technology, and working with failure when it presents itself.

EXPECTED RESULTS
• Systems, such as policies, guidelines, and protocols, are as minimal as possible and address the 

current organizational environment.
• Personnel from cross divisions freely adapt to ideas and systems that are better used by all, 

versus single division systems.
• Reasonable failure from an attempt to be creative or innovative is met with open discussion and 

no penalty.
• Response systems are in place where geo-political boundaries are absent.
• Economy of scale is understood, leveraged, and there is an understanding that we are likely 

better together than apart.
• Technology enhances work practices, automates decision support systems, and can be utilized in 

a highly mobile environment.

THEMATIC GOALS
• TG3A- Evaluate administrative processes.
• TG3B- Refine and minimize business processes.
• TG3C- Take a risk to advance the organization.
• TG3D- Advance regionalization.
• TG3E- Leverage the appropriate technologies.

STANDARD OBJECTIVES
• SO3A- Monitor policy application.
• SO3B- Monitor success of partnerhship efforts.
• SO3C- Monitor use of technology platforms.

6. WHO MUST DO WHAT?

The Leadership Team, made up of thirteen individuals, will work to answer this question. Each 
portion of the Strategic Plan will be owned and driven by a different individual from the
Leadership Team at different times. Outside of the Leadership Team, workgroups will be
assembled through Battalion Chief Rosenlund. These workgroups will be engaged directly with
certain Thematic Goals and Defining Objectives.

92



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Board Policy 3.39 Property Management 

Attachments:  Board Policy 3.39 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Board Policy 3.39 Property Management has been reviewed by Staff. The policy has been 
moved to the new format and updated with minor content changes. 
 
The Policy is presented for first reading and comment. 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

93



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 1 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
NUMBER .......  ..........  ........... 339 

CATEGORY ..  ..........  ........... Administration  

EFFECTIVE ...  ..........  ........... DATE: 12-27-11 

SUPERSEDES .........  ........... POLICIES: 305, 307,311, 325, 332, 333, 808 

  ...........  ..........  ........... RESOLUTIONS: 94-003, 09-05 

 

 

REFERENCE 

Washington State Auditor’s Office 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 

Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 

Budgeting & Accounting Reporting System (BARS) 

Government Finance Officers Association 

GFOA: Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting by Stephen J. Gauthier. 

CPFR Resolution No. 09-23 Standard Procedures for the Sale of Assets 

 

SCOPE 

All Personnel 

 

PURPOSE 

To establish procedures and practices to safeguard and maintain District property. 

To establish a uniform policy for security, handling, and accounting for the District’s supplies, 

parts, and merchandise inventory, herein after referred to as “inventory”. 

To ensure that District property is not used for personal purposes or gain. 

To establish a legal and fair guideline for declaring property and equipment surplus to the needs 

of the Fire District and establishing procedures for the disposal of surplus items. 

 

CONTENTS 

Policy Topics: 

Definition and authorized use 

Procedure Topics: 

Maintenance and Safe-guarding Activities 

 Risk Management 

 Small and Attractive Assets 

94



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 2 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

 Supplies, Parts & Merchandise Inventory 

 

Personal & External Use of District Property 

 Copy machine usage 

 Personal use of district telephones and cell phones 

 Loan out policy (Equipment & Facilities) 

Surplus Property 

 

POLICY 

District property consists of tangible or intangible items donated, purchased and/or maintained 

with District resources.  District property shall be used to carry out the mission of the district and 

shall not be used for external or personal purposes except where allowable by policy or with 

permission by the Fire Chief or his designee. 

Personal, private property stored on District premises shall be kept to a minimum, clearly marked 

and identifiable as such. The District does not assume responsibility for any theft or damage to 

the personal belongings of District employees.  The intent is to inform employees that the 

protection of personal property brought into the workplace is not the responsibility of the District 

and is meant to clearly delineate the employee’s rights and obligations when bringing personal 

property into the workplace so that loss or damage of personal property in the workplace can be 

avoided. 

 

PROCEDURES 

MAINTENANCE AND SAFEGUARDING ACTIVITIES 

District personnel shall maintain and safeguard district property so that it will be in operational 

order to carry out the mission of the district.  Specific activities and procedures are as follows. 

Minimize Risk  

The district shall manage risks by carrying insurance to protect the District against the financial 

consequences of accidental property losses which are catastrophic in nature and to preserve 

assets and public service capabilities from destruction or depletion. 

The District shall strive to minimize the costs of insurance and/or risk management activities in an 

effort to avoid, reduce, transfer, and/or retain risk. 

95



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 3 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

The District shall participate in risk management activities to provide a safe environment in which 

personnel and members of the community can be safe and secure in the course of their daily 

pursuits. 

 

Track and Account for Assets 

District assets fall into three categories capital, small and attractive, and inventory. Tracking and 

accounting for each category of assets vary as follows: 

Capital 

Capital assets include land, buildings, equipment, furnishings, improvements (building or 

otherwise), and intangible (easements, computer software, etc.) items that are not consumed 

within one year and are included in the District’s financial statements.  Assets are capital items 

if the following criteria are met except when purchased with grant funding.  If grant-funded, 

capitalization of assets is governed by Federal Circular OMB A-87 and the applicable federal, 

state, or private grant contract, and may differ from CPFR's definition: 

Land:  All land and/or easements, purchased or donated, are considered capital.  Cost 

will includes acquisition price and cost to prepare the land for its intended use, if 

applicable.  Land will not be depreciated. 

Buildings:  Buildings or permanent structures acquired or constructed with a total 

cost/value of $100,000 or more.   

Equipment and Furnishings:  Total purchase price of at least $5,000 (including taxes, 

shipping, and installation charges). 

Improvements (Betterments):  Improvements to buildings (valued at $100,000 or greater) 

or equipment (valued at $5,000 or greater) that add value by either lengthening a 

capital asset’s estimated useful life or increasing a capital asset’s ability to provide 

service.   

Land Improvement other than Buildings:  Permanent improvements, other than buildings 

that add value to land without an indefinite useful life valued at $5,000 or more.  

Examples include fences, parking lots, retaining walls, etc. 

Intangible:  Items lacking physical form (computer software, etc) valued at $5,000 or 

greater.  Due to intangible assets lacking physical substance, they cannot ‘wear 

out’ so can reasonably be expected to provide the District benefit for an indefinite 

period of time.  As long as there is no contractual obligation or other indication that 

an intangible asset will expire, no amortization expense will be recognized. 

96



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 4 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

Capital items should be tracked utilizing the Asset Control Form.  The following events trigger 

the completion of the form: 

 Additions:  Assets may be acquired via purchase, construction, donation, or lease.  All 

capital assets, whether tangible or intangible will be coded to a capital outlay GL account 

number when purchased.  All capital outlay GL account numbers begin with “56”.  All 

capital outlay GL account numbers will be reconciled to the capital asset database to 

ensure financial records are accurate.  Regardless of how it is acquired, when an asset is 

received, an Asset Control Form should be completed by the purchaser and submitted 

to the Finance division along with purchase order or other documentation showing how 

the asset was acquired.  Whenever practical, it is preferred that assets be purchased and 

received through Central Stores.  The Finance division will input the information into the 

capital asset database. 

 Disposals:  Due to various reasons, assets will eventually be disposed.  This disposal 

needs to be accounted for in the capital asset database.  Disposal may be required due 

to a sale of the asset, scrapping, mysterious disappearance (lost or stolen), or involuntary 

conversion (fire, flood, etc.).  Refer to Surplus/Disposal Procedure below.   

 Transfers:  Occasional transfers of property between stations, divisions, or individuals 

within the department will occur.  The original controlling station, division, or individual is 

accountable for all assets in its inventory and for initiating a notice of transfer. 

 Replacements, Improvements, and Add-On Components:  Replacements, 

improvements, and add-on components defined in the above policy will be reported to 

Finance by completing the Asset Control Form. 

Capital items should be counted annually as follows:   

 Finance Office will supply persons responsible for capital assets with an inventory listing 

of assets used to physically count inventory.  The list should include all assets under their 

control.   

 Responsible party should update the inventory listing of items within their control to report 

and explain any discrepancy to Finance by noting on the count sheet or utilizing an Asset 

Control Form.  

 Responsible party should sign the worksheet and forward it to the Finance Office.   

 Finance Office, on a sampling basis, should perform periodic reviews by performing a 

physical inventory to test validity. 

 After the adjustments are made by Finance division, the final asset list should be given to 

the person responsible for capital assets to sign that it is true and correct. 

Capital items should be depreciated annually as follows: 

97



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 5 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

 Method: All assets should be depreciated using the straight-line method of depreciation 

on a monthly basis.  If an asset is purchased in the first half of the month, depreciation 

should be calculated from the beginning of the month purchased.  Assets purchased in 

the second half of the month should calculate depreciation starting on the first of the next 

month. 

 Useful life: As a general rule, the District purchases a capital asset with the intent of using 

it for the duration of its useful life.  At the end of the useful life, proceeds from the sale of 

the asset would minimal at best.  Therefore, salvage value should be zero.  If it is deemed 

that a capital asset would provide significant proceeds from sale on an active secondary 

market, salvage value should be considered. Useful life is based on the District’s 

experience rather than a published list.  If applicable, technical obsolescence will be a 

determining factor as well. 

 

 

Capital items should be tagged as follows:  

 Capital assets will be physically tagged when there is no unique identification number on 

the asset itself for identification purposes.  Assets may also be tagged to prove District 

ownership.   

 Tags placed on assets for identification purposes are not to be removed until the asset 

has been declared surplus.   

 Tags that are no longer legible should be replaced as soon as practical. 

Small and Attractive Assets 

Attractive assets are tools or equipment that fall below the capitalization threshold of $5,000, 

are not consumed within one year, are theft sensitive, and are not included in the District’s 

financial statements.  To safeguard minor equipment and tools, the following procedures 

should be followed: 

 At a minimum, information on each item should include a description of the item, make, 
model, and serial number.  Purchase price, location and personnel assignment will be 
documented, if applicable.  Information shall be maintained in electronic format by the 
division responsible for tracking the items.  Databases used to maintain attractive assets 
will be updated on a regular basis to reflect acquisitions, dispositions, and transfers.  For 
attractive assets that are maintained by the Finance Office, an Asset Control Form should 
be filled out to report additions, disposal, replacement, and/or transfers. All federally 
funded equipment, regardless of cost, will be assigned to appropriate staff and formally 
tracked.   

98



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 6 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

 Asset counts will be performed annually with capital asset counts and the person 
performing the count will certify that all items have been accounted for.  Proof of counts 
will be forwarded to the Finance Division and maintained for audit purposes.  Reference 
the counting process for capital assets above for a detailed description.  For databases 
that are maintained outside of the Finance Office, an inventory count worksheet will not 
be furnished by the Finance Office.  At a minimum, a listing of the following equipment is 
required.  Other items the District considers to be attractive in nature may also be tracked. 

 Fax machines 
 Scanners 
 Color printers 
 Lap tops 
 Blackberries or other types of smart phones 
 Hand-held PDAs (personal digital assistants) 
 Digital cameras 
 Televisions 
 Entertainment systems including DVD players, CD players, stereos, etc 
 Electric or battery operated small tools 

 

Inventory: Supplies, Parts & Merchandise 

Inventory must be purchased in accordance with Expenditure Management Policy and should 

be held in a secure location where access is limited as much as practical. 

The amount of inventory on hand should be sufficient to meet the needs and anticipated 

demands of the District. 

Inventory maintained by the District will be subject to random audits or cycle counts as 

directed by division managers.  Cycle counts should be used as a tool to help identify common 

variances in inventory.  Items that are habitually inaccurate should be cycle counted frequently 

to discover the cause for variances. 

Inventory items should be kept in a neat, well-organized manner so that the earliest received 

will be issued first.  Damaged and obsolete items should be physically segregated and clearly 

labeled as damaged and/or obsolete.  Disposal of such items shall be preauthorized according 

to district property surplus/disposal requirements. 

Where applicable, “no charge” inventory items that are kept with like items that are charged 

out to different divisions, vehicles, or projects must be clearly marked as “no charge”.  For 

example, returned items that will be sent out with future orders. 

Items not held in the electronic inventory systems must be clearly marked. 

Inventory will be counted and valued at fiscal year-end.  At the end of the fiscal year, the 

District is required to report the value of its current inventory of supplies, parts, and 

99



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 7 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

merchandise held for resale.  Divisions holding inventories of such items are responsible for 

counting and valuing them, and reporting the details to the Finance Division. 

The following guidelines should be used to determine the appropriate level of stock on hand 
for each inventory item: 

 Quantity discounts available. 

 Lead time (time between order and receipt of item). 

 Obsolescence or shelf life. 

 Cost of shortages (including operational shutdowns because of lack of inventory and 
additional shipping expense resulting from expediting of orders) 
 
The following guidelines should be used to determine which items to include in the year-
end inventory reports and valuation: 

 All supplies and parts that are entered into an electronic inventory system (IFAS or 
Squarerigger) should be counted and reported.   

 All items held in inventory for resale should be reported including no charge items. 

 Items held in inventory that will be given to a citizen of the District (smoke detectors) should 
be reported. 

 Capital assets subject to depreciation will not be included in value of inventory. 

 Inventory will be valued on a cost basis. 
 
The value of year-end inventories is included in the District’s official financial statements.  
Therefore, the counting procedure must be in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles.  The purpose of the physical count of all inventoried items is to 
reconcile the physical assets to the official accounting records and to substantiate the 
value of inventory.  The following procedures must be followed in order for the count to be 
acceptable to external reviewers: 

 The annual inventory count theoretically represents the inventory as of the last day of the 
fiscal year.  All counts should be done as close as possible to December 31st.  In no 
instance shall the count be made outside of three weeks of December 31st. 

 The person taking responsibility for the count must document the actual count on paper 
as it is made, and each page of the count document must be certified (signed and dated).  
The original documents must be submitted to the Finance Division. 

 A specific item count should be taken, unless it is not reasonable to do so.  For example, 
it is not reasonable to count hundreds of screws or washers with an individual value of 
pennies).  In these cases the quantity should be reasonably estimated. 
Causes for differences between quantities counted and those shown on accounting 
records should be given due diligence to identify variances.  Cost to research variances 
versus dollar amount of variances should be taken into consideration when deciding level 
of investigation necessary to identify causes.  To the extent possible, improvements in 
procedures should be made to prevent future errors or losses. 
 

Donated Property 
 

100



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 8 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

Assets may be donated to the District.  Donated assets will be estimated at fair value (what 

the District would have had to pay to acquire the asset on its own) at the time of acquisition 

plus ancillary charges, if any.  Then, items will be tracked and accounted for according to their 

classification: capital, small and attractive, etc. 

 
PERSONAL AND EXTERNAL USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 

District property shall be used to carry out the mission of the district and shall not be used for 

external or personal purposes except in the manner as follows: 

Copy Machine Usage 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue copy machines, fax machines and printers may be utilized for all 

fire district work and on projects for associated agencies, i.e. Pierce County Fire Commissioners, 

Pierce County Fire Chiefs, etc.  Utilization of the machines for these projects shall be within the 

agreement with said agency.  This agreement, if without reimbursement, is to be approved by the 

Fire Chief or Deputy Chief. 

If Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has agreed to do copy projects for reimbursement for these 

agencies, the reimbursement will be as designated in the fee and charge schedule adopted 

annually by the Board of Fire Commissioners. 

Employee’s who utilize copy/fax machines or printers for personal items other than projects that 

are District related will be subject to cost reimbursement as designated annually by resolution. 

The use of any District owned copy machines or printers by employees to operate a personal 

business either non-profit or for profit will not be allowed. 

Violation of this policy will, at a minimum, result in cost reimbursement to the District and will 

subject the employee to disciplinary action. 

 

Personal Use of District Telephones and Cell Phones 

Station Phones: 

District phones are to be used for District business; however personal calls are allowed on a 

limited basis. 

Telephone calls received during business hours must be held to a minimum number, limited 

duration and must not interfere with the employee’s work, training, or Department operations. 

If a toll call must be placed, the call is to be billed to the employee’s home number, to a calling 

card, phone card or call collect. 

101



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 9 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

Payment to the District is not an option.  It is the employee’s responsibility to ensure that no cost 

to the District results from their personal telephone calls. 

Cell Phones: 

District cell phones may only be used for personal calls in urgent situations.  If a cellular phone is 

issued to a specific employee, the phone may be used for personal calls as specified in their 

employment contract. 

Loan-Out Policy (Equipment & Facilities) 

It is the policy of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that District owned tools, equipment and other 

property will not be loaned out or borrowed by employees/members, or external 

customers/citizens.  

The only exceptions to this policy are: 

 Reserve fire hose may be loaned out to water companies or other governmental agencies on 

a case-by-case basis, subject to completion of proper paperwork. 

 District owned property may be loaned, leased or rented to other fire agencies with permission 

of the Fire Chief or his designee. 

 In unusual, emergency circumstances, district owned property may be loaned out to citizens 

when all other means have been exhausted and the equipment is essential to preserving life 

or property.  These rare cases must be approved by a Battalion Chief or other chief officer 

and proper documentation must be completed (i.e. Recipients name, address, phone 

numbers, Driver’s license number, etc.) 

 

SURPLUS/REPLACEMENT OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 

When surplus, obsolete, or unused material, property or equipment is identified, the Asset Control 

Form should be completed and submitted to the appropriate Division Head requesting the 

property or equipment be declared as surplus.  

Once approved by the appropriate Division Head they should forward the Asset Control Form to 

the Assistant Chief of Logistics to arrange for storage of the items and eventual disposal. The 

Assistant Chief of Logistics should forward the completed form to the finance division. 

When appropriate, the list of items submitted as surplus, will be formally brought before the Board 

of Commissioner’s to be officially declared surplus to the needs of the district by Board Resolution. 

All surplus items will be disposed of by one (1) of the following methods: 

 All sales shall be open to the public, except scrap (any equipment or material which cannot 

serve its original purpose) which may be sold by private sale at prices established by current 

market conditions. All sales shall be final. 

102



 
 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 10 of 10 

Policy  -  339  Property 

Management  

   

Approved by  

______________  

   

         Fire Chief                   

 Surplus property or equipment with an estimated value of $1,000 or more will be sold by public 

auction, sealed bid, negotiated sale, or transfer to another governmental agency. 

 Surplus property with an estimated value less than $1,000 will be sold by public auction, 

sealed bid, negotiated sale, open market/garage sale or transfer to another government 

agency. 

 Vehicles and or equipment that are primarily used for Fire Suppression or EMS shall first be 

offered to bona fide government agencies prior to being offered to the general public. 

 Emergency vehicles sold to the general public, shall be stripped of all emergency lighting, 

sirens, department identification and radios prior to delivery. 

 Property having no monetary value may be disposed of or recycled at the discretion of the 

Fire Chief or their designee. 

 Trade-in of old equipment to upgrade equipment of the same or reasonable related kind are 

permitted when it is determined by the Board of Commissioners or Fire Chief to be in the best 

interest of the District. 

 Real Property as defined under RCW 39.33 shall be subject to the procedures as outlined 

pursuant to RCW 39.33.020. 

 

When all efforts have failed to recover lost property, personnel should notify their 

supervisor/commanding officer and Finance (via the Asset Control Form). Lost items may require 

additional reports to the police department, Fire Chief, SAO, and Insurance Company.  Disposals 

brought about as a result of natural disasters would require reporting to the insurance provider for 

an eventual reimbursement claim.  Lost property will be reported to the Board of Commissioners 

with surplus property. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Asset Control Form 

Nextel Etiquette  

103



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINE 

NUMBER 3.39 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: 

REVIEWED: 

LAST REVIEW: 

 

SUBJECT: PROPERTY MANAGEMENT  

 

PURPOSE: To establish procedures and practices to safeguard and maintain DistrictDistrict 

property. 

To establish a uniform policy for security, handling, and accounting for the 

DistrictDistrict’s supplies, parts, and merchandise inventory, herein after referred to as 

“inventory”. 

To ensure that DistrictDistrict property is not used for personal purposes or gain. 

 

To establish a legal and fair guideline for declaring property and equipment surplus to 

the needs of the Fire DistrictDistrict and establishing procedures for the disposal of 

surplus items. 

 

POLICY: DistrictDistrict property consists of tangible or intangible items donated, purchased 

and/or maintained with DistrictDistrict resources.  DistrictDistrict property shall be used 

to carry out the mission of the Ddistrict and shall not be used for external or personal 

purposes except where allowable by policy or with permission by the Fire Chief or his 

designee. 

Personal, private property stored on DistrictDistrict premises shall be kept to a 

minimum, clearly marked and identifiable as such. 

 

The DistrictDistrict does not assume responsibility for any theft or damage to the 

personal belongings of DistrictDistrict employees.  The intent is to inform employees 

that the protection of personal property brought into the workplace is not the 

responsibility of the DistrictDistrict and is meant to clearly delineate the employee’s 

rights and obligations when bringing personal property into the workplace so that loss 

or damage of personal property in the workplace can be avoided. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY:  XXX 

 

PROCEDURE:  

 

I. MAINTENANCE AND SAFEGUARDING ACTIVITIES  

 

104



A. DistrictDistrict personnel shall maintain and safeguard districtDistrict property 

so that it will be in operational order to carry out the mission of the 

districtDistrict.  Specific activities and procedures are as follows. 

 

B. Minimize Risk  

1. The districtDistrict shall manage risks by carrying insurance to protect 

the DistrictDistrict against the financial consequences of accidental 

property losses which are catastrophic in nature and to preserve assets 

and public service capabilities from destruction or depletion.  

 

2. The DistrictDistrict shall strive to minimize the costs of insurance and/or 

risk management activities in an effort to avoid, reduce, transfer, and/or 

retain risk.  

 

3. The DistrictDistrict shall participate in risk management activities to 

provide a safe environment in which personnel and members of the 

community can be safe and secure in the course of their daily pursuits.  

 

C. Track and Account for Assets  

 

1. DistrictDistrict assets fall into three categories capital, small and 

attractive, and inventory. Tracking and accounting for each category of 

assets vary as follows: 

II. CAPITAL  

 

A. Capital assets include land, buildings, equipment, furnishings, improvements 

(building or otherwise), and intangible (easements, computer software, etc.) 

items that are not consumed within one year and are included in the District’s 

financial statements..  Assets are capital items if the following criteria are met 

except when purchased with grant funding.  If grant-funded, capitalization of 

assets isassets are governed by Federal Circular OMB A-87 and the applicable 

federal, state, or private grant contract, and may differ from CPFR's definition:  

 

1. Land: All land and/or easements, purchased or donated, are considered 

capital.  Cost will includes acquisition price and cost to prepare the land 

for its intended use, if applicable.  Land will not be depreciated.  

 

2. Buildings:  Buildings or permanent structures acquired or constructed 

with a total cost/value of $100,000 or more.  

 

3. Equipment and Furnishings:  Total purchase price of at least $5,000 

(including taxes, shipping, and installation charges).  

 

105



4. Improvements (Betterments):  Improvements to buildings (valued at 

$100,000 or greater) or equipment (valued at $5,000 or greater) that 

add value by either lengthening a capital asset’s estimated useful life or 

increasing a capital asset’s ability to provide service.  

 

5. Land Improvement other than Buildings:  Permanent improvements, 

other than buildings that add value to land without an indefinite useful 

life valued at $5,000 or more.  Examples include fences, parking lots, 

retaining walls, etc.  

 

6. Intangible:  Items lacking physical form (computer software, etc) valued 

at $5,000 or greater.  Due to intangible assets lacking physical 

substance, they cannot ‘wear out’ so can reasonably be expected to 

provide the DistrictDistrict benefit for an indefinite period of time.  As 

long as there is no contractual obligation or other indication that an 

intangible asset will expire, no amortization expense will be recognized.  

 

7. Capital items should be tracked utilizing the Asset Control Form.  The 

following events trigger the completion of the form:  

 

a. Additions:  Assets may be acquired via purchase, construction, 

donation, or lease.  All capital assets, whether tangible or 

intangible will be coded to a capital outlay GL account number 

when purchased.  All capital outlay GL account numbers begin 

with “56”.  All capital outlay GL account numbers will be 

reconciled to the capital asset database to ensure financial 

records are accurate.  Regardless of how it is acquired, when an 

asset is received, an Asset Control Form should be completed by 

the purchaser and submitted to the Finance division along with 

purchase order or other documentation showing how the asset 

was acquired.  Whenever practical, it is preferred that assets be 

purchased and received through Central Stores.  The Finance 

division will input the information into the capital asset 

database.  

 

b. Disposals: Due to various reasons, assets will eventually be 

disposed. This disposal needs to be accounted for in the capital 

asset database.  Disposal may be required due to a sale of the 

asset, scrapping, mysterious disappearance (lost or stolen), or 

involuntary conversion (fire, flood, etc.).  Refer to 

Surplus/Disposal Procedure below.  

 

c. Transfers:  Occasional transfers of property between stations, 

divisions, or individuals within the department will occur.  The 

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [TR1]: New surplus policy 

Formatted: Highlight

106



original controlling station, division, or individual is accountable 

for all assets in its inventory and for initiating a notice of 

transfer.  

 

d. Replacements, Improvements, and Add-On Components:  

Replacements, improvements, and add-on components defined 

in the above policy will be reported to Finance by completing 

the Asset Control Form. 

 

B. Capital items should be counted annually as follows: 

  

1. Finance Office will supply persons responsible for capital assets with an 

inventory listing of assets used to physically count inventory.  The list 

should include all assets under their control.  

 

2. Responsible party should update the inventory listing of items within 

their control to report and explain any discrepancy to Finance by noting 

on the count sheet or utilizing an Asset Control Form. 

  

3. Responsible party should sign the worksheet and forward it to the 

Finance Office.  

 

4. Finance Office, on a sampling basis, should perform periodic reviews by 

performing a physical inventory to test validity.  

 

5. After the adjustments are made by Finance division, the final asset list 

should be given to the person responsible for capital assets to sign that 

it is true and correct. 

 

C. Capital items should be given a useful life.depreciated annually as follows:  

  

1. Method: All assets should be depreciated using the straight-line method of 

depreciation on a monthly basis.  If an asset is purchased in the first half of the 

month, depreciation should be calculated from the beginning of the month 

purchased.  Assets purchased in the second half of the month should calculate 

depreciation starting on the first of the next month.  

C.  

2.1. Useful life: As a general rule, the DistrictDistrict purchases a capital 

asset with the intent of using it for the duration of its useful life.  At the 

end of the useful life, proceeds from the sale of the asset would minimal 

at best.  Therefore, salvage value should be zero.  If it is deemed that a 

capital asset would provide significant proceeds from sale on an active 

secondary market, salvage value should be considered. Useful life is 

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.25", Numbered + Level:

3 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.38" + Indent at:  1.5"

107



based on the DistrictDistrict’s experience rather than a published list.  If 

applicable, technical obsolescence will be a determining factor as well.  

 

 

D. Capital items should be tagged as follows:  

 

1. Capital assets will be physically tagged to prove District ownership, even 

when there is a no unique identification number on the asset itself for 

identification purposes.  Assets may also be tagged to prove District 

ownership. 

  

2. Tags placed on assets for identification purposes are not to be removed 

until the asset has been declared surplus.  

 

3. Tags that are no longer legible should be replaced as soon as practical. 

 

III. SMALL AND ATTRACTIVE ASSETS  

 

A. Attractive assets are tools or equipment that fall below the capitalization 

threshold of $5,000, are not consumed within one year, and are theft sensitive, 

and are not included in the District’s financial statements..  To safeguard minor 

equipment and tools, the following procedures should be followed:  

 

1. At a minimum, information on each item should include a description of 

the item, make, model, and serial number.  Purchase price, location and 

personnel assignment will be documented, if applicable.  Information 

shall be maintained in electronic format by the division responsible for 

tracking the items.  Examples include but are not limited to telephones, 

radios, and SCBA.  Databases used to maintain attractive assets will be 

updated on a regular basis to reflect acquisitions, dispositions, and 

transfers.  For attractive assets that are maintained by the Finance 

Office. , aAn Asset Control Form should be filled out to report additions, 

disposal, replacement, and/or transfers. All federally funded equipment, 

regardless of cost, will be assigned to appropriate staff and formally 

tracked.  

 

2. Asset counts will be performed annually with capital asset count sheets 

and the person performing the count will certify that all items have 

been accounted for.  Proof of counts will be forwarded to the Finance 

Division and maintained for audit purposes.  Reference the counting 

process for capital assets above for a detailed description.  For 

databases that are maintained outside of the Finance Office, an 

inventory count worksheet will not be furnished by the Finance Office.  

At a minimum, a listing of the following equipment is required.  Other 

108



items the DistrictDistrict considers to be attractive in nature may also be 

tracked.  

 

a. Fax machines  

b. Scanners 

c. Color printers  

d.a. Lap topLaptop computers  

b. Blackberries or other types of smartTablets, surfaces, and smart 

phones  

c. Automatic External Defibrillators (AED) 

d. Radio communication devices 

e. GPS positional tracking devices 

e.f. Binoculars 

f. Hand-held PDAs (personal digital assistants)  

g. Digital cameras  

h.g. Televisions  

i.h. Entertainment systems including Audio / Visual Equipment, DVD 

plsound systemsayers, CD players, stereos, etc.  

j.i. Electric or battery operated small tools that are not identified 

on a vehicle daily/weekly/monthly checklist.   

 

IV. INVENTORY: Supplies, Parts & Merchandise 

 

A. Inventory must be purchased in accordance with Expenditure Management 

Policy and should be held in a secure location where access is limited as much as 

practical.  

 

B. The amount of inventory on hand should be sufficient to meet the needs and 

anticipated demands of the DistrictDistrict.  

 

C. Inventory maintained by the DistrictDistrict will be subject to random audits or 

cycle counts as directed by division managers.  Cycle counts should be used as a 

tool to help identify common variances in inventory.  Items that are habitually 

inaccurate should be cycle counted frequently to discover the cause for 

variances.  

 

D. Inventory items should be kept in a neat, well-organized manner so that the 

earliest received will be issued first.  Damaged and obsolete items should be 

physically segregated and clearly labeled as damaged and/or obsolete.  Disposal 

of such items shall be preauthorized according to districtDistrict property 

surplus/disposal requirements.  

 

E. Where applicable, “no charge” inventory items that are kept with like items that 

are charged out to different divisions, vehicles, or projects must be clearly 

Commented [TR2]: Didn’t we stop tracking these? 
 
Should anything more be added 

Commented [SC3R2]: Scanners and color printers we 
stopped tracking. 
I think we need to have a conversation at the management 
level to define what is considered “theft-sensitive”. 

109



marked as “no charge”.  For example, returned items that will be sent out with 

future orders.  

 

F. Items not held in the electronic inventory systems must be clearly marked.  

 

G. Inventory will be counted and valued at fiscal year-end, and locations of items 

tracked and reported.  At the end of the fiscal year, the District is required to 

report the value of its current inventory of supplies, parts, and merchandise 

held for resale.  Divisions holding inventories of such items are responsible for 

counting and valuing them, and reporting the details to the Finance Division. 

Inventories include  

1. Central Stores 

2. Vehicle Parts 

3. Bike Helmets 

4. Smoke Detectors 

5. Facility Maintenance Parts 

6. IT phones and stock computers 

G.  

 

H. The following guidelines should be used to determine the appropriate level of 

stock on hand for each inventory item:  

 

1. Quantity discounts available.  

2. Lead time (time between order and receipt of item).  

3. Obsolescence or shelf life.  

4. Cost of shortages (including operational shutdowns because of lack of 

inventory and additional shipping expense resulting from expediting of 

orders).  

 

I. The following guidelines should be used to determine which items to include in 

the year-end inventory reports and valuation:  

 

1. All supplies and parts that are entered into an electronic inventory 

system (IFAS OneSolution, OperativeIQ or Square-rigger) should be 

counted and reported.  

2. All items held in inventory for resale should be reported including no 

charge items.  

3. Items held in inventory that will be given to a citizen of the 

DistrictDistrict (smoke detectors) should be reported.  

4. Capital assets subject to depreciation will not be included in value of 

inventory.  

5. Inventory will be valued on a cost basis.  

 

Commented [TR4]: This was GAAP correct? guessing it 
can be deleted 

Commented [SC5R4]: Yes – Although, I believe tracking 
it’s value is important for management purposes.  I also 
think we should identify where the inventories are.   

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2",  No bullets or numbering

110



J. The value of year-end inventories is included in the District’s official financial 

statements.  Therefore, tThe counting procedure must be in accordance with 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.  The purpose of the physical count of 

all inventoried items is to reconcile the physical assets to the official accounting 

records and to substantiate the value of inventory.  The following procedures 

must be followed in order for the count to be acceptable to external reviewers:  

 

1. The annual inventory count theoretically represents the inventory as of 

the last day of the fiscal year.  All counts should be done as close as 

possible to December 31st.  In no instance shall the count be made 

outside of three weeks of December 31st.  

 

2. The person taking responsibility for the count must document the actual 

count on paper as it is made, and each page of the count document 

must be certified (signed and dated).  The original documents must be 

submitted to the Finance Division.  

 

3. A specific item count should be taken, unless it is not reasonable to do 

so.  For example, it is not reasonable to count hundreds of screws or 

washers with an individual value of pennies).  In these cases the 

quantity should be reasonably estimated.  

 

4. Causes for differences between quantities counted and those shown on 

accounting records should be given due diligence to identify variances.  

Cost to research variances versus dollar amount of variances should be 

taken into consideration when deciding level of investigation necessary 

to identify causes.  To the extent possible, improvements in procedures 

should be made to prevent future errors or losses. 

 

V. DONATED PROPERTY  

 

A. Assets may be donated to the DistrictDistrict.  Donated assets will be estimated 

at fair value (what the DistrictDistrict would have had to pay to acquire the asset 

on its own) at the time of acquisition plus ancillary charges, if any.  Then, items 

will be tracked and accounted for according to their classification: capital, small 

and attractive, etc. 

 

VI. PERSONAL AND EXTERNAL USE OF DISTRICTDISTRICT PROPERTY  

 

A. DistrictDistrict property shall be used to carry out the mission of the 

districtDistrict and shall not be used for external or personal purposes except in 

the manner as follows:  

 

1. Copy Machine Usage  

111



 

a. Central Pierce Fire & Rescue copy machines, fax machines and 

printers may be utilized for all fire districtDistrict work and on 

projects for associated agencies, i.e. Pierce County Fire 

Commissioners, Pierce County Fire Chiefs, etc.  Utilization of the 

machines for these projects shall be within the agreement with 

said agency.  This agreement, if without reimbursement, is to be 

approved by the Fire Chief or Deputy Chief.  

 

b. If Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has agreed to do copy projects 

for reimbursement for these agencies, the reimbursement will 

be as designated in the fee and charge schedule adopted 

annually by the Board of Fire Commissioners.  

 

c. Employees who utilize copy/fax machines or printers for 

personal items other than projects that are DistrictDistrict 

related will be subject to cost reimbursement as designated 

annually by resolution.  

 

d. The use of any DistrictDistrict owned copy machines or printers 

by employees to operate a personal business either non-profit 

or for profit will not be allowed.  

 

e. Violation of this policy will, at a minimum, result in cost 

reimbursement to the DistrictDistrict and will subject the 

employee to disciplinary action.  

 

2. Personal Use of DistrictDistrict Telephones and Cell Phones  

 

a. Station Phones:  

 

i. DistrictDistrict phones are to be used for DistrictDistrict 

business; however personal calls are allowed on a 

limited basis. 

  

ii. Telephone calls received during business hours must be 

held to a minimum number, limited duration and must 

not interfere with the employee’s work, training, or 

Department operations.  

 

iii. If a toll call must be placed, the call is to be billed to the 

employee’s home number, to a calling card, phone card 

or call collect.  

 

112



iv. Payment to the DistrictDistrict is not an option.  It is the 

employee’s responsibility to ensure that no cost to the 

DistrictDistrict results from their personal telephone 

calls.  

 

b. Cell Phones:  

 

i. DistrictDistrict cell phones may only be used for 

personal calls in urgent situations.  If a cellular phone is 

issued to a specific employee, the phone may be used 

for personal calls as specified in their employment 

contract.  

 

3. Loan-Out Policy (Equipment & Facilities)  

 

a. It is the policy of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that 

DistrictDistrict owned tools, equipment and other property will 

not be loaned out or borrowed by employees/members, or 

external customers/citizens.   

 

b. The only exceptions to this policy are:  

 

i. Reserve fire hose may be loaned out to water 

companies or other governmental agencies on a case-

by-case basis, subject to completion of proper 

paperwork.  

 

ii. DistrictDistrict owned property may be loaned, leased 

or rented to other fire agencies with permission of the 

Fire Chief or his designee.  

 

iii. In unusual, emergency circumstances, districtDistrict 

owned property may be loaned out to citizens when all 

other means have been exhausted and the equipment 

is essential to preserving life or property.  These rare 

cases must be approved by a Battalion Chief or other 

chief officer and proper documentation must be 

completed (i.e. Recipients name, address, phone 

numbers, Driver’s license number, etc.) 

 

VII. SURPLUS/REPLACEMENT OF DISTRICTDISTRICT PROPERTY  

 

A. When surplus, obsolete, or unused material, property or equipment is 

identified, the Asset Control Form should be completed and submitted to the 

113



appropriate Division Head requesting the property or equipment be declared as 

surplus.  

 

B. Once approved by the appropriate Division Head they should forward the Asset 

Control Form to the Assistant Chief of Logistics to arrange for storage of the 

items and eventual disposal. The Assistant Chief of Logistics should forward the 

completed form to the finance division.  

 

C. When appropriate, the list of items submitted as surplus, will be formally 

brought before the Board of Commissioner’s to be officially declared surplus to 

the needs of the districtDistrict by Board Resolution.  

 

D. All surplus items will be disposed of by one (1) of the following methods:  

 

1. All sales shall be open to the public, except scrap (any equipment or 

material which cannot serve its original purpose) which may be sold by 

private sale at prices established by current market conditions. All sales 

shall be final.  

 

2. Surplus property or equipment with an estimated value of $1,000 or 

more will be sold by public auction, sealed bid, negotiated sale, or 

transfer to another governmental agency.  

 

3. Surplus property with an estimated value less than $1,000 will be sold 

by public auction, sealed bid, negotiated sale, open market/garage sale 

or transfer to another government agency.  

 

4. Vehicles and or equipment that are primarily used for Fire Suppression 

or EMS shall first be offered to bona fide government agencies prior to 

being offered to the general public.  

 

5. Emergency vehicles sold to the general public, shall be stripped of all 

emergency lighting, sirens, department identification and radios prior to 

delivery.  

6. Property having no monetary value may be disposed of or recycled at 

the discretion of the Fire Chief or their designee.  

 

7. Trade-in of old equipment to upgrade equipment of the same or 

reasonable related kind are permitted when it is determined by the 

Board of Commissioners or Fire Chief to be in the best interest of the 

DistrictDistrict.  

 

8. Real Property as defined under RCW 39.33 shall be subject to the 

procedures as outlined pursuant to RCW 39.33.020.  

114



 

E. When all efforts have failed to recover lost property, personnel should notify 

their supervisor/commanding officer and Finance (via the Asset Control Form). 

Lost items may require additional reports to the police department, Fire Chief, 

SAO, and Insurance Company.  Disposals brought about as a result of natural 

disasters would require reporting to the insurance provider for an eventual 

reimbursement claim.  Lost property will be reported to the Board of 

Commissioners with surplus property. 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

_______________________ 

DUSTIN MORROW  

FIRE CHIEF 

115



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINE 

NUMBER 3.39 

 

ORIGINATED AND APPROVED: 

REVIEWED: 

LAST REVIEW: 

 

SUBJECT: PROPERTY MANAGEMENT  

 

PURPOSE: To establish procedures and practices to safeguard and maintain District property. 

To establish a uniform policy for security, handling, and accounting for the District’s 

supplies, parts, and merchandise inventory, herein after referred to as “inventory”. 

To ensure that District property is not used for personal purposes or gain. 

 

To establish a legal and fair guideline for declaring property and equipment surplus to 

the needs of the Fire District and establishing procedures for the disposal of surplus 

items. 

 

POLICY: District property consists of tangible or intangible items donated, purchased and/or 

maintained with District resources.  District property shall be used to carry out the 

mission of the District and shall not be used for external or personal purposes except 

where allowable by policy or with permission by the Fire Chief or his designee. 

Personal, private property stored on District premises shall be kept to a minimum, 

clearly marked and identifiable as such. 

 

The District does not assume responsibility for any theft or damage to the personal 

belongings of District employees.  The intent is to inform employees that the protection 

of personal property brought into the workplace is not the responsibility of the District 

and is meant to clearly delineate the employee’s rights and obligations when bringing 

personal property into the workplace so that loss or damage of personal property in the 

workplace can be avoided. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY:  XXX 

 

PROCEDURE:  

 

I. MAINTENANCE AND SAFEGUARDING ACTIVITIES  

 

A. District personnel shall maintain and safeguard District property so that it will 

be in operational order to carry out the mission of the District.  Specific activities 

and procedures are as follows. 

 

B. Minimize Risk  

116



1. The District shall manage risks by carrying insurance to protect the 

District against the financial consequences of accidental property losses 

which are catastrophic in nature and to preserve assets and public 

service capabilities from destruction or depletion.  

 

2. The District shall strive to minimize the costs of insurance and/or risk 

management activities in an effort to avoid, reduce, transfer, and/or 

retain risk.  

 

3. The District shall participate in risk management activities to provide a 

safe environment in which personnel and members of the community 

can be safe and secure in the course of their daily pursuits.  

 

C. Track and Account for Assets  

 

1. District assets fall into three categories capital, small and attractive, and 

inventory. Tracking and accounting for each category of assets vary as 

follows: 

II. CAPITAL  

 

A. Capital assets include land, buildings, equipment, furnishings, improvements 

(building or otherwise), and intangible (easements, computer software, etc.) 

items that are not consumed within one year.  Assets are capital items if the 

following criteria are met except when purchased with grant funding.  If grant-

funded, assets are governed by Federal Circular OMB A-87 and the applicable 

federal, state, or private grant contract, and may differ from CPFR's definition:  

 

1. Land: All land and/or easements, purchased or donated, are considered 

capital.  Cost will includes acquisition price and cost to prepare the land 

for its intended use, if applicable.   

 

2. Buildings:  Buildings or permanent structures acquired or constructed 

with a total cost/value of $100,000 or more.  

 

3. Equipment and Furnishings:  Total purchase price of at least $5,000 

(including taxes, shipping, and installation charges).  

 

4. Improvements (Betterments):  Improvements to buildings (valued at 

$100,000 or greater) or equipment (valued at $5,000 or greater) that 

add value by either lengthening a capital asset’s estimated useful life or 

increasing a capital asset’s ability to provide service.  

 

5. Land Improvement other than Buildings:  Permanent improvements, 

other than buildings that add value to land without an indefinite useful 

117



life valued at $5,000 or more.  Examples include fences, parking lots, 

retaining walls, etc.  

 

6. Intangible:  Items lacking physical form (computer software, etc) valued 

at $5,000 or greater.  Due to intangible assets lacking physical 

substance, they cannot ‘wear out’ so can reasonably be expected to 

provide the District benefit for an indefinite period of time 

 

7. Capital items should be tracked utilizing the Asset Control Form.  The 

following events trigger the completion of the form:  

 

a. Additions:  Assets may be acquired via purchase, construction, 

donation, or lease.  All capital assets, whether tangible or 

intangible will be coded to a capital outlay GL account number 

when purchased. All capital outlay GL account numbers will be 

reconciled to the capital asset database to ensure financial 

records are accurate.  Regardless of how it is acquired, when an 

asset is received, an Asset Control Form should be completed by 

the purchaser and submitted to the Finance division along with 

purchase order or other documentation showing how the asset 

was acquired.  Whenever practical, it is preferred that assets be 

purchased and received through Central Stores.  The Finance 

division will input the information into the capital asset 

database.  

 

b. Disposals: Due to various reasons, assets will eventually be 

disposed. This disposal needs to be accounted for in the capital 

asset database.  Disposal may be required due to a sale of the 

asset, scrapping, mysterious disappearance (lost or stolen), or 

involuntary conversion (fire, flood, etc.).  Refer to 

Surplus/Disposal Procedure below.  

 

c. Transfers:  Occasional transfers of property between stations, 

divisions, or individuals within the department will occur.  The 

original controlling station, division, or individual is accountable 

for all assets in its inventory and for initiating a notice of 

transfer.  

 

d. Replacements, Improvements, and Add-On Components:  

Replacements, improvements, and add-on components defined 

in the above policy will be reported to Finance by completing 

the Asset Control Form. 

 

B. Capital items should be counted annually as follows: 

118



  

1. Finance Office will supply persons responsible for capital assets with an 

inventory listing of assets used to physically count inventory.  The list 

should include all assets under their control.  

 

2. Responsible party should update the inventory listing of items within 

their control to report and explain any discrepancy to Finance by noting 

on the count sheet or utilizing an Asset Control Form. 

  

3. Responsible party should sign the worksheet and forward it to the 

Finance Office.  

 

4. Finance Office, on a sampling basis, should perform periodic reviews by 

performing a physical inventory to test validity.  

 

5. After the adjustments are made by Finance division, the final asset list 

should be given to the person responsible for capital assets to sign that 

it is true and correct. 

 

C. Capital items should be given a useful life. 

1. Useful life: As a general rule, the District purchases a capital asset with 

the intent of using it for the duration of its useful life.  Useful life is 

based on the District’s experience rather than a published list.  If 

applicable, technical obsolescence will be a determining factor as well.  

 

 

D. Capital items should be tagged as follows:  

 

1. Capital assets will be physically tagged to prove District ownership, even 

when there is a unique identification number on the asset itself for 

identification purposes.  

  

2. Tags placed on assets for identification purposes are not to be removed 

until the asset has been declared surplus.  

 

3. Tags that are no longer legible should be replaced as soon as practical. 

 

III. SMALL AND ATTRACTIVE ASSETS  

 

A. Attractive assets are tools or equipment that fall below the capitalization 

threshold of $5,000, are not consumed within one year, and are theft sensitive.  

To safeguard minor equipment and tools, the following procedures should be 

followed:  

 

119



1. At a minimum, information on each item should include a description of 

the item, make, model, and serial number.  Purchase price, location and 

personnel assignment will be documented, if applicable.  Information 

shall be maintained in electronic format by the division responsible for 

tracking the items.  Examples include but are not limited to telephones, 

radios, and SCBA.  Databases used to maintain attractive assets will be 

updated on a regular basis to reflect acquisitions, dispositions, and 

transfers.  For attractive assets that are maintained by the Finance 

Office. An Asset Control Form should be filled out to report additions, 

disposal, replacement, and/or transfers. All federally funded equipment, 

regardless of cost, will be assigned to appropriate staff and formally 

tracked.  

 

2. Asset counts will be performed annually with capital asset count sheets 

and the person performing the count will certify that all items have 

been accounted for.  Proof of counts will be forwarded to the Finance 

Division and maintained for audit purposes.  Reference the counting 

process for capital assets above for a detailed description.  For 

databases that are maintained outside of the Finance Office, an 

inventory count worksheet will not be furnished by the Finance Office.  

At a minimum, a listing of the following equipment is required.  Other 

items the District considers to be attractive in nature may also be 

tracked.  

 

a. Laptop computers  

b. Tablets and smart phones  

c. Automatic External Defibrillators (AED) 

d. Radio communication devices 

e. GPS positional tracking devices 

f. Binoculars 

g. Televisions  

h. Entertainment systems including Audio / Visual Equipment, 

sound systems, etc.  

i. Electric or battery operated small tools that are not identified 

on a vehicle daily/weekly/monthly checklist.   

 

IV. INVENTORY: Supplies, Parts & Merchandise 

 

A. Inventory must be purchased in accordance with Expenditure Management 

Policy and should be held in a secure location where access is limited as much as 

practical.  

 

B. The amount of inventory on hand should be sufficient to meet the needs and 

anticipated demands of the District.  

120



 

C. Inventory maintained by the District will be subject to random audits or cycle 

counts as directed by division managers.  Cycle counts should be used as a tool 

to help identify common variances in inventory.  Items that are habitually 

inaccurate should be cycle counted frequently to discover the cause for 

variances.  

 

D. Inventory items should be kept in a neat, well-organized manner so that the 

earliest received will be issued first.  Damaged and obsolete items should be 

physically segregated and clearly labeled as damaged and/or obsolete.  Disposal 

of such items shall be preauthorized according to District property 

surplus/disposal requirements.  

 

E. Where applicable, “no charge” inventory items that are kept with like items that 

are charged out to different divisions, vehicles, or projects must be clearly 

marked as “no charge”.  For example, returned items that will be sent out with 

future orders.  

 

F. Items not held in the electronic inventory systems must be clearly marked.  

 

G. Inventory will be counted and valued at fiscal year-end, and locations of items 

tracked and reported.  Divisions holding inventories of such items are 

responsible for counting and valuing them, and reporting the details to the 

Finance Division. 

Inventories include 

1. Central Stores 

2. Vehicle Parts 

3. Bike Helmets 

4. Smoke Detectors 

5. Facility Maintenance Parts 

6. IT phones and stock computers 

 

H. The following guidelines should be used to determine the appropriate level of 

stock on hand for each inventory item:  

 

1. Quantity discounts available.  

2. Lead time (time between order and receipt of item).  

3. Obsolescence or shelf life.  

4. Cost of shortages (including operational shutdowns because of lack of 

inventory and additional shipping expense resulting from expediting of 

orders).  

 

I. The following guidelines should be used to determine which items to include in 

the year-end inventory reports and valuation:  

121



 

1. All supplies and parts that are entered into an electronic inventory 

system (OneSolution, OperativeIQ or Square-rigger) should be counted 

and reported.  

2. All items held in inventory for resale should be reported including no 

charge items.  

3. Items held in inventory that will be given to a citizen of the District 

(smoke detectors) should be reported.  

4. Capital assets will not be included in value of inventory.  

5. Inventory will be valued on a cost basis.  

 

J. The counting procedure must be in accordance with Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles.  The purpose of the physical count of all inventoried 

items is to reconcile the physical assets to the official accounting records and to 

substantiate the value of inventory.  The following procedures must be followed 

in order for the count to be acceptable to external reviewers:  

 

1. The annual inventory count theoretically represents the inventory as of 

the last day of the fiscal year.  All counts should be done as close as 

possible to December 31st.  In no instance shall the count be made 

outside of three weeks of December 31st.  

 

2. The person taking responsibility for the count must document the actual 

count on paper as it is made, and each page of the count document 

must be certified (signed and dated).  The original documents must be 

submitted to the Finance Division.  

 

3. A specific item count should be taken, unless it is not reasonable to do 

so.  For example, it is not reasonable to count hundreds of screws or 

washers with an individual value of pennies).  In these cases the 

quantity should be reasonably estimated.  

 

4. Causes for differences between quantities counted and those shown on 

accounting records should be given due diligence to identify variances.  

Cost to research variances versus dollar amount of variances should be 

taken into consideration when deciding level of investigation necessary 

to identify causes.  To the extent possible, improvements in procedures 

should be made to prevent future errors or losses. 

 

V. DONATED PROPERTY  

 

A. Assets may be donated to the District.  Donated assets will be estimated at fair 

value (what the District would have had to pay to acquire the asset on its own) 

at the time of acquisition plus ancillary charges, if any.  Then, items will be 

122



tracked and accounted for according to their classification: capital, small and 

attractive, etc. 

 

VI. PERSONAL AND EXTERNAL USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY  

 

A. District property shall be used to carry out the mission of the District and shall 

not be used for external or personal purposes except in the manner as follows:  

 

1. Copy Machine Usage  

 

a. Central Pierce Fire & Rescue copy machines, fax machines and 

printers may be utilized for all fire District work and on projects 

for associated agencies, i.e. Pierce County Fire Commissioners, 

Pierce County Fire Chiefs, etc.  Utilization of the machines for 

these projects shall be within the agreement with said agency.  

This agreement, if without reimbursement, is to be approved by 

the Fire Chief or Deputy Chief.  

 

b. If Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has agreed to do copy projects 

for reimbursement for these agencies, the reimbursement will 

be as designated in the fee and charge schedule adopted 

annually by the Board of Fire Commissioners.  

 

c. Employees who utilize copy/fax machines or printers for 

personal items other than projects that are District related will 

be subject to cost reimbursement as designated annually by 

resolution.  

 

d. The use of any District owned copy machines or printers by 

employees to operate a personal business either non-profit or 

for profit will not be allowed.  

 

e. Violation of this policy will, at a minimum, result in cost 

reimbursement to the District and will subject the employee to 

disciplinary action.  

 

2. Personal Use of District Telephones and Cell Phones  

 

a. Station Phones:  

 

i. District phones are to be used for District business; 

however personal calls are allowed on a limited basis. 

  

123



ii. Telephone calls received during business hours must be 

held to a minimum number, limited duration and must 

not interfere with the employee’s work, training, or 

Department operations.  

 

iii. If a toll call must be placed, the call is to be billed to the 

employee’s home number, to a calling card, phone card 

or call collect.  

 

iv. Payment to the District is not an option.  It is the 

employee’s responsibility to ensure that no cost to the 

District results from their personal telephone calls.  

 

b. Cell Phones:  

 

i. District cell phones may only be used for personal calls 

in urgent situations.  If a cellular phone is issued to a 

specific employee, the phone may be used for personal 

calls as specified in their employment contract.  

 

3. Loan-Out Policy (Equipment & Facilities)  

 

a. It is the policy of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue that District 

owned tools, equipment and other property will not be loaned 

out or borrowed by employees/members, or external 

customers/citizens.   

 

b. The only exceptions to this policy are:  

 

i. Reserve fire hose may be loaned out to water 

companies or other governmental agencies on a case-

by-case basis, subject to completion of proper 

paperwork.  

 

ii. District owned property may be loaned, leased or 

rented to other fire agencies with permission of the Fire 

Chief or his designee.  

 

iii. In unusual, emergency circumstances, District owned 

property may be loaned out to citizens when all other 

means have been exhausted and the equipment is 

essential to preserving life or property.  These rare 

cases must be approved by a Battalion Chief or other 

chief officer and proper documentation must be 

124



completed (i.e. Recipients name, address, phone 

numbers, Driver’s license number, etc.) 

 

VII. SURPLUS/REPLACEMENT OF DISTRICT PROPERTY  

 

A. When surplus, obsolete, or unused material, property or equipment is 

identified, the Asset Control Form should be completed and submitted to the 

appropriate Division Head requesting the property or equipment be declared as 

surplus.  

 

B. Once approved by the appropriate Division Head they should forward the Asset 

Control Form to the Assistant Chief of Logistics to arrange for storage of the 

items and eventual disposal. The Assistant Chief of Logistics should forward the 

completed form to the finance division.  

 

C. When appropriate, the list of items submitted as surplus, will be formally 

brought before the Board of Commissioner’s to be officially declared surplus to 

the needs of the District.  

 

D. All surplus items will be disposed of by one (1) of the following methods:  

 

1. All sales shall be open to the public, except scrap (any equipment or 

material which cannot serve its original purpose) which may be sold by 

private sale at prices established by current market conditions. All sales 

shall be final.  

 

2. Surplus property or equipment with an estimated value of $1,000 or 

more will be sold by public auction, sealed bid, negotiated sale, or 

transfer to another governmental agency.  

 

3. Surplus property with an estimated value less than $1,000 will be sold 

by public auction, sealed bid, negotiated sale, open market/garage sale 

or transfer to another government agency.  

 

4. Vehicles and or equipment that are primarily used for Fire Suppression 

or EMS shall first be offered to bona fide government agencies prior to 

being offered to the general public.  

 

5. Emergency vehicles sold to the general public, shall be stripped of all 

emergency lighting, sirens, department identification and radios prior to 

delivery.  

6. Property having no monetary value may be disposed of or recycled at 

the discretion of the Fire Chief or their designee.  

 

125



7. Trade-in of old equipment to upgrade equipment of the same or 

reasonable related kind are permitted when it is determined by the 

Board of Commissioners or Fire Chief to be in the best interest of the 

District.  

 

8. Real Property as defined under RCW 39.33 shall be subject to the 

procedures as outlined pursuant to RCW 39.33.020.  

 

E. When all efforts have failed to recover lost property, personnel should notify 

their supervisor/commanding officer and Finance (via the Asset Control Form). 

Lost items may require additional reports to the police department, Fire Chief, 

SAO, and Insurance Company.  Disposals brought about as a result of natural 

disasters would require reporting to the insurance provider for an eventual 

reimbursement claim.  Lost property will be reported to the Board of 

Commissioners with surplus property. 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

DUSTIN MORROW  

FIRE CHIEF 

126



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title: Competitive Bid Waiver, Sole Source Helmets 

Attachments: Resolution 23-01 and sole source letters 

Submitted by: Tanya Robacker 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

  Click here to enter text. 

 

TWO MOTIONS:  

Motion to waive two meeting rule. 

 

Motion to approve Resolution 23-01 Waiving competitive bidding for sole source purchase of 

Phenix Structural Helmets from US Fire Equipment. 

 

SUMMARY:     

New structural helmets are needed.  Phenix Helmets have a base helmet that weighs only thirty nine 

ounces and are the only manufactures on the market that can provide a first due helmet this weight that 

is NFPA 1971 compliant. 

Operations is looking to buy this light weight helmet to combat neck fatigue and continue focus on neck 

injury reduction for CPFR firefighters. 

US Fire & Equipment is the only dealer in Washington State authorized to sell Phenix helmets. US Fire 

has written a sole source letter supporting this, as has the manufacturer Phenix  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  Cost for 294 Helmets, straps and shields including tax and shipping will be 

approximately $167k and is appropriated in the 2023 Budget.  

 

127



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL PIERCE 
FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORIZING WAIVER OF COMPETITIVE BIDDING 
REQUIREMENTS FOR SOLE SOURCE PHENIX FIRE HELMETS. 
 

WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.280 provides for the waiver of competitive bidding 
requirements under enumerated conditions including (1)(a) Purchases that are clearly 
and legitimately limited to a single source of supply and (1)(b) Purchases involving special 
facilities or market conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the District has the need for replacement of thirty nine ounce first due 
helmets to combat neck fatigue and continued focus on neck injury reduction for 
firefighters; and 

WHEREAS, Phenix fire helmets are the lightest first due helmets on the market 
that are NFPA 1971 compliant, weighing only thirty nine ounces; and  

WHEREAS, US Fire Equipment LLC is the only dealer in Washington State 
authorized to sell Phenix Fire Helmets; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners has determined that it is in the best 
interest of the District to approve the purchase under the statutory bid exceptions 
identified above. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue hereby: 

Section 1:  Waive the competitive bidding requirements pursuant to RCW 
39.04.280(1)(a) and (b). 
 
Section 2:  Authorize the purchase of Phenix fire helmets for all commissioned 
personnel. 

a. The Phenix fire helmets are clearly and legitimately available only from a 
single source of supply. 

 
  

128



MOVED AND PASSED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF FIRE 

COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE AND RESCUE ON THE ______ DAY 

OF ________________, 2023, OF WHICH ALL COMMISSIONERS WERE NOTIFIED 

AND _____ WERE PRESENT AND VOTING. 

 
 
 
SIGNATURE PAGE 
 
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Chairman    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner  
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner   Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Dale Mitchell, Commissioner  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 

 

129



130



From: Matthew Zekmeister
To: Tanya Robacker
Subject: RE: Phenix fire helmets - 39oz
Date: Thursday, January 26, 2023 5:06:34 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
image007.png
image008.png
image009.png
image010.png
image011.png
image012.png
image013.png

Good evening Tanya. For reference purposes, we just weighed the NFPA compliant First Due base
model (PHE001D-ESS) and the weight is 2.49 lbs, or 39.84 ounces. This weight includes some extra
packaging (bags, tags, etc) that gets discarded by the user before putting into service. To our
knowledge, we are not aware of another NFPA 1971 compliant helmet on the market that is
approximately 39 ounces.
 

 
Please let me know the model you purchased and any add-ons. This might explain a weight
difference that you mentioned.
 
We are not open of Fridays, so I may not see your email reply until Monday.

131



 
Best wishes,
 

 Matt Zekmeister
Distributor Relations Lead
Phenix Technology, Inc.
 

 

951-272-4938
phenixfirehelmets.com
3453 Durahart St, Riverside, CA 92507

    
Monday - Thursday 9:00 AM - 5:00 PM Pacific Time

 

 
This E-mail and any attached files, information or pricing transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the individual or
entity to whom they are addressed. If you are NOT the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the E-mail to the intended recipient,
be advised that you have received this E-mail in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this E-mail, attached files,
information or pricing is strictly prohibited.
 
 
 

From: Tanya Robacker <TRobacker@Centralpiercefire.org> 
Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2023 4:16 PM
To: Angel Sanchez <AngelS@phenixfirehelmets.com>
Cc: Tanya Robacker <TRobacker@Centralpiercefire.org>
Subject: Phenix fire helmets - 39oz
 
Good Afternoon Alex, we have a few questions regarding a recent order of helmets.  Ginny at
US Fire Eq directed me to you, can you give me a call when you have a chance? Or we can
schedule a time.
 
My cell is 
Thank you,
Tanya
 
Tanya Robacker | Finance Director
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue
' 253.538.6416|trobacker@centralpiercefire.org
 
“Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve”
 
 

This email and its attachments may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of the individual to whom it is addressed. Any
views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Fire Department.

132



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   February 13, 2023 

Item Title:    Firefighter Hiring Notification 

Attachments:    Lateral Academy 23-1.1 Hiring Notifications 

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Attached please find the Hiring Notifications for Lateral Academy 23-1.1.   
 
These documents memorialize the hire date and seniority rank of the new employees.   
 
I will be at the meeting to answer any questions you may have. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 

133



Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve  

 

 

 

 
 
After completion of an oral board, suitability assessment profile, background 
investigation and Chief's interview, evaluation scores reflect the following standings: 
 
Hire Date: February 6, 2023 
 

 
 
 
_________________________ 
Dustin Morrow 
Fire Chief 
 

Rank Candidate

1 Knoetgen, Matthew

2 Wendt, Austin

3 Nagorski, Schuyller

4 Pearson, Mitchell

5 Paramapoonya, Brad

6 Ericson, Steve

7 Franquez, Michael

8 Malfabon, Elvis

9 Stewart, Andrew

10 Haulman, Thomas

11 Lund, Christian

12 Kelley, Michael

13 Peterson, Matthew

14 Murphy, Sammy

 

 
Lateral Firefighter Hiring Notification 

Academy 23-1.1 
 

 

134



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title: Class A Uniform Funding 

Attachments: None 

Submitted by: Dustin Morrow, Fire Chief 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION:  
 
Motion to approve and appropriate $182,000 from beginning cash carry forward to 204 Logistics 
for the purpose of purchasing Class A Uniforms for Line Personnel. 
 
SUMMARY:    
 
Late in 2022, Staff discussed with the Board of Fire Commissioners the plan to increase the 
purchase and distribution of Class A Uniforms for Line Personnel. Within this discussion was the 
intent to fund these uniform purchases through Commissioner Contingency. 
 
As is typical, Staff did not carry over Commissioner Contingency Funds from 2022 to 2023, the 
balance unexpended was $141,500. As such, Staff is now asking to use cash carry forward to 
finish the purchase of Class A Uniforms for Line Personnel. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
$182,000 from Commissioner Contingency to Division 204 Logistics. 
  
 

135



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    February 13, 2023 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:    N/A 

Submitted by:   HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Spring Promotional Ceremony 

 We will be holding the first of three (3) promotional ceremonies in 2023 on Thursday, February 23rd at 
3:00 p.m. at the Pioneer Park Pavilion. 

o We encourage you to attend this event to celebrate our most recent promoted employees 
 
Recruitment 

 New Hires/Promotions/Transfers 
o Facilities Maintenance Worker – 02.06.2023 

 We welcomed Chris Noble on February 6th as the newest Facilities Maintenance Worker 
in Logistics.   

 

 Current Recruitments 
o Academy 23-1.1 (Laterals) 

 Fourteen (14) lateral candidates began with us on February 6th    
   

o Academy 23-1.2 (Laterals) 
 We are currently completing the physicals and psychological assessments for the 

second lateral recruitment we held.   

 The hope is that we will have nineteen (19) lateral candidates starting with us on 
April 10th. 

 
o Academy 23-2 (Entry Level) 

 We had 517 applicants 

 379 met the minimum qualifications and were invited to take the written exam 
o 335 completed the written exam 

 All candidates who passed the exam were separated into four separate bands 
based on their workstyles inventory score (Band A-B-C-D) 

o We invited all of Band A to oral board interviews (172 candidates) 
o 170 scheduled their oral board which are being held February 13-16 

 

136



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

o Support Specialist – Administration  
o Support Specialist - EMS 

 328 applicants 
o 205 met the minimum requests and were invited to complete online 

testing 
 130 completed the online testing, all were invited to the online 

one-way (video) interview 

 105 completed the one-way interview 
o 8 candidates were invited to interview for EMS on 

2.7.2023 
o 9 candidates were invited to interview for the 

Administration position on 2.7 & 2.8 
 

o Landscape & Maintenance Worker 
 With the creation of a second Landscape & Maintenance Worker in the Logistics 

division, we have begun a recruitment fill this position  

 Applications are currently being accepted through February 20th. 
o As of the writing of the AIS we have 24 applicants. 

 
o Mechanic 

 With the creation of a second Lead Mechanic in the Logistics division (which will be filled 
from an internal candidate), we have begun a new Mechanic recruitment to backfill 
whichever Mechanic position becomes vacant.   

 Applications are currently being accepted through February 20th.   

 As of the writing of the AIS we have 4 applicants. 
 

 Upcoming Recruitments/Other Staffing work 
o All of the promotional tests (Lt, Cpt, BC and AC) 
o Remaining positions approved in the 2023 budget 

 
Other Projects 

 Job Analysis  
o Due to scheduling issues in January, the remaining two workshops (DFM and Assistant Chief) 

are going to be rescheduled – hopefully in late February or early March.   
 

 Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) 
o Chief Morrow has engaged our consultant, Lawrence Garrett, to do an analysis of the 

leadership team and to present a workshop to that team in March.  From there, we will begin 
some work on what the work in 2023 for DEI will look like.   

 
 
Negotiations/Non-Represented Changes 

 We are continuing to meet with Local 726 to negotiate the implementation of a number of items agreed 
to with their ratified contract. 

137



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Training Division Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by AC Benning 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Completed Live Fire training at North Bend and FF I&II testing with academy.  

A.  Thanks to all you make these things work. 
B. Graduation Feb 17th, all are invited 
 

 
2. Two new academies started Feb 6th. 

A. Entry level 23-1 GFR, EPFR, and OVFR 
B. Lateral academy 14 new hires 
 

3. Still working on the process of Identifying, Coordinating, and Delivering Training that 
falls outside of the Current PCFTC Scope. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 

138



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title: Field Operations Division Report 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: AC Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1. Field Operations Protocol Book has been published, See Infoportal  

 
2. Response Gear and new Helmets have been ordered and should be put into service 

in the beginning of 2nd quarter.  
 
3. Recruit Class 22-2 spent the weekend at North Bend Fire Training Academy for Live 

fire training. 
A. Kudos to the Live Fire Instructor Cadre’ – The best in the Businsess! 
B. AC Kent spent the weekend with the group.    

 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 

139



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title: EMS Division Report 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: AC Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:   

1) “Tuesday Series”  EMS Division is instructing EMS classes for the academy group every 
Tuesday. 

2) Working on reciprocity process for the lateral hire group. 
3) Evaluating the need for procuring 31 new AEDs. 

 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 

140



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Operations Section Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by DC Stueve 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Data Management & Analytics 

 
A. As we take steps to understand our data needs better, we’re evaluating what 

physical resources are needed and what overlaps are present in our contract 
services.   
 

B. I am currently taking steps to redefine our arrangements with Intterra. 
 

2. Washington State Fair Contract 2023 
 

A. We have exchanged initial proposals.  The WSF staff has been an excellent partner 
in the conversation; I expect to have a draft before you soon. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report   

Attachments:  None 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow   
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
Regional Cooperative Efforts 
 
Graham Fire- the District continues to be engaged with Graham Fire on our shared 
deployment efforts. Both Districts have communicated to Local 726 our desires to 
facilitate some joint command and control efforts. Local 726 has responded and 
meetings are being established to bargain any impacts. 
 
Orting Valley- discussions continue with Orting Valley Fire & Rescue. Additional 
meetings between the two Districts have been established on February 16th and again 
on February 23rd. Local 726 will be part of the discussions held at the meeting on the 
16th.  
 
Closest Forces- Darkhorse has completed the initial ESZ assignments, allowing a 
closest forces arrangement to be considered by Central Pierce, East Pierce, Orting 
Valley, Graham, and West Pierce. I believe that it may be mid-year before any of the 
possible changes are implemented. 
 
Station 62 
Staff has altered the course for the remodel at Station 62. While this change in course 
will not impact the planned outcome for service, it will save the District roughly $1M in 
planned expenses. BJ Butler has done an amazing job of putting together a functional 
remodel plan that will not exceed $200K. The station should be ready to occupy by 
September of this year. The station will be capable of deploying two 2-person units 24 
hours per day. 
 

142



143



144



145



1

Ariel Paramapoonya

From: Info@centralpiercefire.org
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 8:53 AM
To: Ray Escobedo; Ron Kent; Joe Bouchard; Jesse Fox
Cc: Ariel Paramapoonya
Subject: FW: Thanks you!!

Please see web email below. Kudos! 
 

 
Yours in fire prevention, 

Amy Jackson 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Prevention & Education 

902 7th Street NW 
Puyallup, WA 98371 
253.538.6402 
ajackson@centralpiercefire.org  
 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
“Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve” 
Connect with us! 

   
 
 
 
From: Beth Fallis [mailto:efallis28@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 2, 2023 3:33 PM 
To: Info@centralpiercefire.org 
Subject: Thanks you!! 

 
Good Afternoon, 
 
I want to give a shout out to the firefighters at station 69 in South Hill!!  
 
Last night my fourteen year old was having a medical emergency on the way home from the YMCA. We swung 
into the parking lot of the fire station hoping we could quickly get his heart on a monitor. The firefighters at the 
station responded immediately to getting his heart on a monitor. I just want to say thank you and I am so 
grateful for their quick response and care. They put my son's safety first and got his heart rate back down to 
normal. Because of this most recent episode, I ordered a heart monitor, and I will be following up with his 
cardiologist. You all do amazing work!  
 
Thank you, Elizabeth Fallis (Christian, Wells, and Audrey) 

 

146



1

Ariel Paramapoonya

From: Patrick Merriman
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 9:43 AM
To: ! Employee Recognition Committee
Cc: Patrick Merriman
Subject: Recognizing Linda Workman

Linda Workman (Main Runner & CS Assistant) is an integral part of daily operations for this department.  Virtually every 
item that is ordered by our members, she has been involved with.  The speed and efficiency of her work is paramount to 
the smooth operations of CPFR.  Every member and every division benefits daily from her work.  This past week, the 
LP15 monitor annual services were conducted, this is truly a work of art moving every device from its assigned home to 
a central location for service and then by the end of the process, magically returned to where they belong, without 
interruption of the mission .  She single handedly tracked, transported and returned all 30+ devices without assistance, 
while maintaining normal operations and providing Administrative Support for the CS Manager.  For the past 15 years 
she truly has demonstrated how vital she is to this organization.  I for one appreciate her immensely.  
 
Please, when you see her, thank her and make sure she knows how much she is appreciated.  
 
Retain and promote. 
 
Pat Merriman 
Purchasing Agent 
Central Stores Manager 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Ship to:  
9813 128th St. E 
Puyallup, Wa. 98373 
253‐538‐6426 office 

 
CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

“Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve” 
www.CentralPierceFire.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

147


	1 - 2023-02-13 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2023-01-23 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2023_02_13 Warrant Approval
	6A - Strategic Plan Second AIS
	6A1 - CPF&R strategic plan 2023-2025 V4 Final
	7A - BOD 3.39 AIS First Read
	7A1 - Policy 339 - Property Management 12-27-11 OLD
	7A2 3.39 PROPERTY MANAGEMENT_2-9-23 RED
	7A3 - 3.39 PROPERTY MANAGEMENT_2-9-23 for BOC CLEAN
	7B - 23-01_1st AIS_Resolution Sole Source Helmets
	7B1 - 23-01_Resolution_ Waiver of Competitive Bid_Sole Source_Helmets
	7B2 - US Fire Equipment
	7B3 - Phenix fire helmets - 39oz
	8A - AIS 2.13.2023  Firefighter Hiring Notifications
	8A1 - Lateral Academy 23-1.1 Hiring Notification List
	8B - Commissioner Contingency Class A Uniforms AIS
	9A - 2.13.2023 HR Report Div Report
	9B - Training Div Report
	9C - Operations AIS 2-13-2023
	9D - EMS AIS February 2023
	9E - OPSEC Div Report AIS 02.13.23
	9F - Fire Chiefs ReportFILE_8561
	10A - Citizen Thank you Corres
	10B - Citizen Thank you Corres
	10C - Citizen Thank you Corres
	10D - Linda Corres
	ADPE6E5.tmp
	Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA
	Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar)
	Time: 5:00 p.m.




